

**FIRST RESTATEMENT TO THE  
BYLAWS  
OF  
ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL ASSOCIATION**

**ARTICLE I  
NAME**

**Section 1:** Name. The name of the Association is the “ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL ASSOCIATION”. It shall be a non-profit organization incorporated under the laws of the State of Minnesota and designated as a 501(c)(3) organization by the Internal Revenue Service. ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL ASSOCIATION shall be referred to in these Bylaws as the “AYBA”.

**Section 2:** Addresses. The registered office address of the AYBA is 203 22nd Avenue West, Alexandria, MN 56308. The mailing address shall be c/o ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL ASSOCIATION, P.O. Box 212, Alexandria, MN 56308.

**ARTICLE II  
PURPOSE & OBJECTIVES**

**Section 1:** 501(c)(3) Non-Profit Status. The AYBA is organized exclusively for charitable, religious, educational, and scientific purposes as specified in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, including for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any federal tax code.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this document, the organization shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on by an organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or corresponding section of any future tax code, or by an organization, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future tax code.

No substantial part of the activities of the AYBA shall constitute the carrying on of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, or any initiative or referendum before the public, and the AYBA shall not participate in, or intervene in (including by publication or distribution of statements), any political campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.

**Section 2:** Purpose. The purpose of the AYBA is to provide support to baseball opportunities and programs for players in the Alexandria area. In-house programs are open to all players regardless of place of residency. Travel, American Legion, and High School programs are reserved for players residing within the boundaries of Independent School District No. 206 (“District 206”). Requests to participate in AYBA programs by players residing outside of District 206 will be evaluated by the Board on a case-by-case basis. The AYBA is an

independent body of parents and community supporters who are aware at all times of the rules, regulations, and standard of conduct which govern participation in baseball under the sanctioning of the Minnesota Youth Athletic Services, American Legion Baseball, and Minnesota State High School League guidelines, as applicable. The AYBA will establish an ongoing dialogue and working relationship with the Alexandria Public Schools Athletic Director, baseball coaching staff, and parents to ensure that the AYBA's participation in and support of the baseball programs are at all times consistent with the highest goals and aspirations of the coaches, parents, and participants.

**Section 3:** Mission Statement: The AYBA's mission is to have a baseball program that rigorously teaches the fundamentals of baseball while incorporating life skills intended to equip participants with the qualities they will need and use later in life. In order to accomplish this mission, the AYBA seeks to attain the following objectives:

- a. To govern the league(s) in a manner that puts the development of the participants, as both athletes and persons, above other considerations.
- b. To provide the participants with coaches who work with players of all ability levels and who remember that development of exceptional athletic skills and winning games is secondary to the development of players and to provide the participants with positive examples and a positive baseball experience.
- c. To provide the participants with volunteer coaches who seek to teach the participants the rules of the game along with proper baseball fundamentals.
- d. To provide high-quality facilities and equipment for the use of the participants.

### **ARTICLE III BUSINESS YEAR**

The business year for administrative and fiscal purposes shall run from January 1 through December 31 of each year.

### **ARTICLE IV MANAGEMENT**

The business and affairs of the AYBA shall be managed by and under the direction of a board of directors (the "**Board**"), except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. The AYBA shall be composed of natural persons (each a "**Director**") who shall be appointed as provided in these Bylaws. The Board shall act only through an act of the Board. No individual Director has any right or power to act solely for the AYBA. The power and authority granted to the Board hereunder shall include all those necessary or convenient for the furtherance of the purposes of the AYBA and shall include the power to make all decisions with regard to the management, operations, assets, financing, and capitalization of the AYBA.

**Section 1:** Positions.

- a. Board of Directors. A Board of no less than fifteen (15) and not greater than twenty-five (25) directors (including the Officers) shall manage the business and affairs of the AYBA. The number of Directors may be subject to increase or decrease by unanimous resolution of the Board. Directors shall be natural persons. Each Director shall serve for a term of three (3) years with such term expiring at the adjournment of the annual meeting in the appropriate year, or until his or her earlier death, disqualification, resignation or removal. Terms of the Directors shall be staggered so that approximately one-third of the Director terms expire each year, and terms may be adjusted by an affirmative vote of the Board of Directors as necessary to maintain such staggering of terms. Except as otherwise specifically permitted herein, no Director shall serve for more than two (2) consecutive full terms (the “Term Limit”). Persons shall again be eligible for election as a Director following a break in service as a Director of at least one (1) year. A term of less than three (3) years that was established to implement a staggering of terms or that results from the Board filling a vacancy shall not be considered a “full term” for purposes of this Section.
- b. Officers; Executive Director. All Officers shall be elected at the AYBA annual business meeting in January and shall hold office for one (1) year, commencing immediately following election. The Officers shall consist of President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. Officers may hold the same position for consecutive terms if re-elected. Each Officer shall serve on the Board. The Executive Director of the AYBA shall be filled by the then-current head coach of the Alexandria Public Schools varsity baseball team, and the Executive Director shall assist the Board as directed and serve in an *ex officio* capacity.
- c. Compensation. Directors and Officers shall not be paid for their services to the AYBA in their capacity as directors or officers, provided that Directors and Officers may be reimbursed their expenses incurred in furtherance of the AYBA’s business, as incurred in execution of their duties as a Director or Officer of the AYBA, or as reasonably approved by the Board for undertaking duties above and beyond what is expected. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no compensation will be remitted nor shall any expenditure be reimbursed without the proper verification of receipts and/or other supporting documentation.
- d. Extent of Duties. Directors shall discharge their duties in good faith, and with the diligence and care which an ordinary prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances, with the goal of accomplishing the stated purposes of this AYBA. A person who so performs such duties of a Director shall not be liable by reason of being or having been a Director of the AYBA.
- e. Powers and Authority. Without limiting the foregoing authority of the Board to manage the business affairs of the AYBA, or the actions of the Board may take and exercise under the powers and privileges of the AYBA, the Board shall have the right to make the following decisions and take the following actions:

- i. Agents. To direct and oversee the agents of the AYBA in the implementation of the decisions of the Board;
- ii. Expenditures. To direct the expenditure of the capital and assets of the AYBA in furtherance of the purposes of the AYBA;
- iii. Handle Investments. To direct the investment of AYBA assets in any manner the Board deems to be in the best interests of the AYBA;
- iv. Policies. To enter into policies as to criteria that the Board or appointed committees shall rely on in making donations from the funds held by the AYBA;
- v. Sell and Transfer Assets. To sell, dispose, abandon, trade, exchange or encumber assets of the AYBA (but not a sale, disposition, abandonment, trade, or exchange of all or any substantial portion of the AYBA's assets), upon such terms and conditions and for such consideration as the Board deems appropriate;
- vi. Address Claims. To institute, prosecute, defend, settle, compromise, and dismiss lawsuits or other judicial or administrative proceedings brought on behalf of, or against, the AYBA, or any Director or Officer in connection with activities arising out of, connected with, or incidental to the AYBA, and engage counsel or others in connection therewith;
- vii. Enter Agreements. To enter into agreements and contracts with any Director, Officer, or an affiliate of any Director or Officer, and to give receipts, releases and discharges with respect to all of the foregoing and any matters incident thereto as the Board may deem advisable or appropriate; provided, however, that any such agreement or contract shall be on terms as favorable to the AYBA as could be obtained from any third party.

**Section 2:**     Officer Positions.

- a. President. The President shall preside at all AYBA meetings and shall perform other duties usually pertaining to the office of President. The President shall carry out decisions expressed by the majority of the Board. The President shall vote only in the event there is a tie after a quorum is present. The President shall be authorized to direct the Treasurer to issue checks consistent with the budget.
- b. Vice President. The Vice President shall act as the President in the absence of the President and when so acting have the power and authority of the President. The Vice President shall be responsible for other duties as assigned.
- c. Secretary. The Secretary shall prepare and maintain full minutes of all meetings of the Board. The Secretary shall conduct and keep all correspondence of the AYBA and perform such other duties that customarily pertain to the office of

Secretary. The Secretary shall distribute and/or post meeting minutes as determined by the Board.

- d. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive, deposit and give account of the current assets of the AYBA, manage all funds, securities and financial records of the AYBA, maintain appropriate records, make payments for all AYBA liabilities, submit a financial statement at each monthly Board meeting, submit a fiscal year-end statement and obtain proper State, Federal and IRS approval of the AYBA's tax-exempt status. The Treasurer shall perform such other duties as customarily pertain to the office of Treasurer.
- e. Additional Officer Positions. In addition to the positions specified above, the Board may appoint such additional officer positions in the Board's reasonable discretion.

**Section 3:** Nomination of Officer or Director. Nominations to serve as an officer or Director are to be accepted by the acting Board on or prior to the January business meeting. Nominations may be made by a current Director or by self-nomination. All nominations must be accepted and consented to by the nominees. Elections will take place immediately at the January meeting of the Board. If there are two or more nominees for the same position, an election by ballot will take place at the general business meeting, and election decisions shall be made by a majority vote of the Directors present and entitled to vote at the meeting. If there is one nominee running unopposed for a position, the Board shall deem the nominee duly elected. No ballot election is necessary for an unopposed nominee.

**Section 4:** Committees. The Board may by resolution create such committees as it deems appropriate. Committees shall exercise such power and carry out such functions as are designated in these Bylaws or as may be determined or delegated by the Board pursuant to resolutions adopted from time to time. Committees of the Board shall be standing or special. Each committee may have a chair or co-chairs and members as appointed by the President. If not otherwise appointed to a standing committee, the President shall be an *ex officio* member of each standing committee. Each special committee shall stand discharged when a new committee is appointed for the same task. Each committee shall have the membership, rights, powers, authority, duties, and responsibilities from time to time determined by the Board but shall have no power to take action on behalf of the AYBA except as specifically directed by the Board and shall at all times be subject to the direction and control of the Board. Members of committees need not be Directors. Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and report the same to the Board.

**Section 5:**    Resignation and Removal of Officers or Directors.

- a.    Resignation. Any Officer or Director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Secretary. Unless otherwise specified in such written notice, resignation shall take effect upon receipt thereof by the Board, and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
  
- b.    Removal. Any elected Officer or Director may be removed by a majority vote of the Board, subject to any limitations imposed by law. Additionally, a Director may be removed from the Board if the Director attends fewer than six (6) meetings in any administrative year. The President may grant a Director a leave which exempts the Director from the six (6) meeting minimum.
  
- c.    Vacancy Appointment. In the event an Officer or Director vacancy occurs, the vacancy shall be filled as soon as possible via a majority vote of the remaining elected Board at the next scheduled business meeting of the Board. The individual elected shall hold office until the end of the vacated Director's and/or Officer's term and may run for the same position, or any other position, the following year.

**ARTICLE V  
MEETINGS**

**Section 1:**    Annual Meeting. A meeting of the Board for electing Officers and Directors shall be held each January.

**Section 2:**    Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at such frequency and at such dates, times, and places as the Board shall from time to time determine.

**Section 3:**    Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the President, Vice President, or by any three (3) or more Directors upon delivery of written notice to the Secretary stating the purpose of the meeting.

**Section 4:**    Calling Meetings; Notice. Notice of any meeting of the Board shall be delivered personally, by mail, or by telephone, facsimile or electronic transmission to each Director through such contact information as may be provided from time to time by each Director. The notice shall state the date, time and place of the meeting but need not state the purposes thereof except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or required by law. If the date, time and place of a meeting of the Board have been announced at a previous meeting of the Board, no notice is required. Notices of annual meeting shall be delivered at least fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting but not more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting. Notices of regular meetings shall be delivered at least five (5) days prior to the meeting but not more than fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting. Notices of special meetings shall be delivered at least two (2) days prior to the meeting but not more than seven (7) days prior to the meeting. A Director may waive notice of a meeting of the Board. A waiver of notice by a Director entitled to notice is effective whether given before, at, or after the meeting and whether given in writing, orally, or by attendance. Attendance by a Director at a meeting is a waiver of notice of that meeting unless the Director

objects at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened and does not participate in the meeting.

**Section 5:** Quorum. The presence, in person or by remote or other electronic means, of a simple majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If a quorum is present when a duly called or held Board meeting is convened, the Directors present may continue to transact business until adjournment, even though the withdrawal of a number of Directors originally present leaves less than the proportion or number otherwise required for a quorum. If less than a quorum is present at any meeting, a simple majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

**Section 6:** Electronic Communications. A Director (or any member of any committee of the Board) may participate in a Board meeting (or committee meeting) by any means of communication by which the Director (or committee member), other Directors (or other committee members) participating, and all Directors (or all committee members) physically present at the meeting may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. A conference among Directors by a means of communication through which the Directors may simultaneously hear each other during the conference shall constitute a Board meeting if the same notice is given of the conference as would be required for a meeting in person and if the number of Directors participating in the conference is a quorum. Participating in a meeting by this means constitutes personal presence at the meeting for purposes of quorum.

**Section 7:** Written Action. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken by written action signed by the number of Directors required to take the same action at a meeting of the Board at which all Directors were present. The written action is effective when signed by the required number of Directors, unless a different effective date is provided in the written action. When written action is taken by less than all of the Directors, all Directors shall be notified immediately of its text and effective date, but failure to provide such notice does not invalidate the written action. A Director may consent to a written action to be taken pursuant to this Section by authenticated electronic communication (including consent by email). A communication is “authenticated” if it is delivered to an officer or agent the AYBA authorized to receive the communication, and the communication sets forth information from which the AYBA can reasonably conclude that the communication was sent by the purported sender.

## **ARTICLE VI BUDGET AND FINANCE**

**Section 1:** Use of Funds. The AYBA shall be empowered to receive, hold and expend funds on monies acquired by the organization to further the purpose of the AYBA. The Board intends to use the funds for the benefit of all components of the AYBA with the understanding that certain programs or teams may have greater participation and financial needs or projects, which may result in an unequal distribution of funds among programs or teams from time to time. All monies received shall be counted and verified by a minimum of two (2) individuals. At least one (1) of the individuals counting and verifying the monies received must be a Director. All counters and verifiers shall be approved by the Board with signatures required as supporting

documentation. All documentation shall be submitted to the Treasurer as soon as possible thereafter. All monies received shall be deposited in an account designated by the AYBA on the date of receipt, if reasonably possible. No Director shall be permitted to carry AYBA funds without proper documentation, nor shall a Director be permitted to maintain AYBA funds at the Director's place of residence or other unapproved location unless monies received are unable to be deposited in an AYBA-designated account due to the depository institution's hours of operation. In the event a Director maintains AYBA funds at the Director's place of residence, the monies shall again be counted and verified upon returning to the AYBA event.

**Section 2:** Restriction on Use of Funds. All revenues of the AYBA will be used strictly to further the purpose of the AYBA in a manner consistent with the AYBA's mission, purpose, and approved budget or the expressed wishes of the donor, if permissible. In no event shall the revenues of the AYBA be used to pay, reimburse, or defray costs unrelated to the AYBA, its mission, and purpose, nor shall the AYBA afford pecuniary gain, incidentally or otherwise, to its Directors or Officers, and no part of the net earnings of the AYBA shall inure to the benefit of any private individual, except that the AYBA shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and goods received, to provide indemnification and pay premiums for insurance protection without reimbursement to the full extent permitted or required by applicable law, and to make payments in distributions in furtherance of the purposes the AYBA. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the AYBA shall not engage in any activities not permitted to be carried on by an organization exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

**Section 3:** Financial Report; Annual Budget. The Treasurer shall present a complete financial report to the Board at the general business meetings of the Board each February and August. An annual budget shall be prepared following consultation with each Board committee. The budget shall be presented to the Board for approval no later than the Board's general business meeting each November.

**Section 4:** Disbursements. All disbursements of funds require Board approval and shall be made by check. The President, Vice President, or those expressly authorized by the President in writing may grant permission for an expenditure in situations of duress or inability to call a Board meeting for approval so long as the President obtains the consent of at least two (2) additional Directors. The President, Vice President, Treasurer, or such other Officer or agent of the AYBA authorized by a majority of the Board from time to time, shall have the authority to withdraw and deposit monies on behalf of the AYBA.

**Section 5:** Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the AYBA, and no negotiable papers shall be issued in its name unless and except as authorized by majority vote of the Board.

**Section 6:** Audit of Books and Accounts. The books and accounts of the AYBA shall be audited at least once every three (3) years. The audit shall be conducted by a certified public accounting firm, as determined by the Board. A financial review shall be conducted upon the replacement of the Treasurer and/or at the discretion of the Board.



**ARTICLE VII  
FUNDRAISING**

**Section 1:** General Fund. Any direct donations must be made to the general fund to be used by the AYBA in the discretion of the Board. It is understood failure to do so may jeopardize section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and subject the AYBA to penalties.

**Section 2:** Implementation of Fundraising. Any and all fundraising must be presented in writing to the Board and must be pre-approved by the Board before being implemented.

**ARTICLE VIII  
RULES OF GOVERNANCE**

**Section 1:** Robert's Rules. Rules contained in the current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised*, shall govern all AYBA meetings.

**ARTICLE IX  
DISSOLUTION AND LIABILITY**

**Section 1:** Dissolution. The AYBA may be dissolved in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota. Upon such dissolution, and after payment of all liabilities and obligations of the AYBA and all costs and expenses incurred by the AYBA in connection with dissolution and winding up its affairs, any remaining assets shall be distributed to or among one or more organizations which are exempt from federal income taxation pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code. Subject to the foregoing distribution criteria, to the extent possible, the remaining assets shall be distributed in the following priority: (i) one or more affiliated organizations of the AYBA, (ii) one or more similar youth baseball organizations, and (iii) one or more youth athletics organizations. No provision of these Bylaws shall be construed to affect the disposition of property held by the AYBA upon trust or other condition, and upon the dissolution of the AYBA, such property shall be transferred in accordance with the trust or condition imposed upon it.

**Section 2:** Liability. The Officers and Directors of the AYBA shall not be personally liable for the payment of any debts or obligations of the AYBA, nor shall any property or any officer or Director be subject to the payment of the debts or obligations of the AYBA.

**ARTICLE X  
INDEMNIFICATION**

**Section 1:** Authority of Board of Directors. The AYBA, acting through its Board or as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may exercise as fully as may be permitted from time to time by the statutes and decisional law of this State or by any other applicable rules or principles of law its power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, wherever brought, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a Director, Officer, or agent of the AYBA, or is or was serving at the request of the AYBA in such

capacity for another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, against expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgment, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding.

**Section 2:** Standard for Indemnification. Any Director, Officer, committee member or other agent of the AYBA shall be indemnified by the AYBA if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the AYBA, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe such conduct was unlawful. He or she must also not have received any improper personal benefit or engaged in self-dealing in violation of law nor have been indemnified by another organization in connection with the same proceeding with respect to the same acts or omissions.

**Section 3:** No Presumptions Resulting from Termination of Actions. The determination of any action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the AYBA, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person had reasonable cause to believe that such conduct was unlawful.

**Section 4:** Mandatory Indemnification. To the extent that any such person has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit, or proceeding referred to in these Bylaws, or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter within these Bylaws, such person shall be indemnified against expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith, if such person has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in these Bylaws.

**Section 5:** Determination. Any indemnification hereunder, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by the AYBA upon a determination that indemnification of the Director, Officer, or agent is proper in the circumstances because such person has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth herein. Such determination shall be made: (1) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who are not parties to such action, suit, or proceeding, (2) if such a quorum is not obtainable or, even if obtainable if the Board so elects, by a majority of a committee of the Board, consisting solely of two or more Directors not at the time parties to the proceeding; or (3) if a determination is not made under clause (1) or (2), by a written opinion of special legal counsel, selected as provided in Minnesota Statutes.

**Section 6:** Continuance of Indemnification. Indemnification provided pursuant to these Bylaws shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a Director, Officer, or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of such a person.

**Section 7:** Insurance. The AYBA may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, Officer, or agent of the AYBA, or is or was serving at the request of the AYBA as a director, officer, or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, provided that no indemnification shall be made under any

policy of insurance for any act which could not be indemnified by the AYBA under applicable law.

**Section 8:** No Liability for Volunteers. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, and in addition to the indemnification set forth above, except as provided below, no person who serves without compensation as a Director, Officer, or agent of the AYBA shall be held civilly liable for an act or omission by that person if the act or omission was in good faith, was within the scope of the person’s responsibilities as a Director, Officer, or agent, and did not constitute willful or reckless misconduct, provided that such limitation shall not apply to:

- a. An action or proceeding brought by the state attorney general for a breach of a fiduciary duty as a director;
- b. A cause of action to the extent it is based on federal law;
- c. A cause of action based on the person’s express contractual obligation; or
- d. A cause of action for physical injury to the person of another or for wrongful death that is personally and directly caused by that individual.

## **ARTICLE XI ADOPTION AND REVISION**

**Section 1:** Adoption. These restated bylaws are hereby adopted as the Bylaws of the AYBA. They shall be reviewed annually after election and may be altered, amended, or restated to omit or include any provision which could be lawfully omitted or included at the time of such amendment, by the affirmative vote of not less than sixty percent (60%) of the Directors present and entitled to vote at a duly called meeting of the Board.

**Section 2:** Effective. Said Bylaws of the ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL ASSOCIATION were adopted by the Board of Directors at its meeting on April 1, 2024, to be effective January 1, 2024.

**ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL  
ASSOCIATION**

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Its President

### **CERTIFICATION OF BYLAWS**

The undersigned hereby certifies that the foregoing Restated Bylaws of the ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL ASSOCIATION were duly adopted on the 1st day of April, 2024, to be the Bylaws of the AYBA.

**ALEXANDRIA YOUTH BASEBALL  
ASSOCIATION**

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Its Secretary

MWS:jls | 2015-1862.333